



Manua Version 1.0

Version 1.0 DSM-120

Wireless Music Player

Table of Contents

Safety Information	4
Introduction	7
Package Contents	8
System Requirements	8
Features & Benefits	9
Hardware Overview	10
Front Panel	10
Back Panel Connections	11
Getting Started	12
Using the Remote Control	13
Installing the D-Link® Media Server Software	15
Choosing Music Files to Share	19
Using the D-Link® Media Server Software	23
Accessing the Media on your PCs	23
Sharing Media Content in Folders	24
Refreshing Folder Contents	24
Naming the Media Server	25
Stopping the D-Link Media Server	
Using Windows® Media Connect Software	27
Configuring Windows® Media Connect	27
Installing the File Manager Software	31
Transferring Music with Mini-USB	34
Disconnecting the Mini-USB	35
Connecting the DSM-120	37
Audio Connections	37
Network Connections	38
USB Connection	39
The DSM-120 Setup Wizard	40
Welcome Screen	40
Connection Mode	42
Windows Connect Now Configuration	44
DSM-120 Menu	48
Menu Basics	48
Menu Home	48
Now Playing	48
PC Music	49
Music Quality	49
Supported Music Formats	49
Organizing Music Files	50
Playing a Track	51
Shuffle and Repeat	52
Local Music	53
Online Music	54
Live365™	54
Setup	56
Network Wizard	56
EQ Mode	57
System	57
Clock	58
Version	59
Hard Disk	59
LCD Logo Displays	60
2.5" Hard Drive	61
Installing an optional 2.5" Hard Drive	61
Partition your 2.5" Hard Drive	62
Create a Partition Larger than 32GB	64
Using the File Manager	65
Volume	68



Copy	9
Frequently Asked Questions	Û
Troubleshooting	2
Technical Specifications	7
Appendix	9
Setting Microsoft Windows Power Options	9
Wireless Installation Considerations	0
Partition a FAT32 Hard Drive	1
Glossary	2
Networking	2
Music	3
Technical Support	4
Warranty	5
Registration	8

Safety Information

For optimum performance, please read the following information carefully. **Safety Precautions**



The lightning flash with arrowhead symbol, within an equilateral triangle, is intended to alert users to the presence of uninsulated "dangerous voltage" within the product's enclosure that may be of sufficient magnitude to constitute a risk of electric shock to persons.

The exclamation point within an equilateral triangle is intended to alert the user to the presence of important operating and maintenance (servicing) instructions in the literature accompanying the appliance.

CAUTION!

THE POWER ADAPTER IS USED AS THE MAIN DISCONNECT DEVICE. ENSURE THAT THE SOCKET-OUTLET IS LOCATED/INSTALLED NEAR THE EQUIPMENT AND IS EASILY ACCESSIBLE.

CAUTION!

TO REDUCE THE RISK OF FIRE, ELECTRIC SHOCK, OR PRODUCT DAMAGE, DO NOT EXPOSE THE UNIT TO RAIN, MOISTURE, DRIPPING, OR SPLASHING. DO NOT PLACE OBJECTS FILLED WITH LIQUIDS UPON THE UNIT.

CAUTION!

- DO NOT INSTALL OR PLACE THIS UNIT IN A BOOKCASE, BUILT-IN CABINET OR IN ANOTHER CONFINED SPACE. ENSURE THE UNIT IS WELL VENTILATED. TO PREVENT RISK OF ELECTRIC SHOCK OR FIRE HAZARD DUE TO OVERHEATING, ENSURE THAT CURTAINS AND ANY OTHER MATERIALS DO NOT OBSTRUCT THE VENTILATION VENTS.
- DO NOT OBSTRUCT THE UNIT'S VENTILATION OPENINGS WITH NEWSPAPERS, TABLECLOTHS, CURTAINS, AND SIMILAR ITEMS.
- DO NOT PLACE SOURCES OF NAKED FLAMES, SUCH AS LIGHTED CANDLES, ON THE UNIT.
- DISPOSE OF BATTERIES IN AN ENVIRONMENTALLY-FRIENDLY MANNER.

CAUTION!

TO PREVENT ELECTRIC SHOCK, MATCH THE WIDE BLADE OF THE PLUG TO THE WIDE SLOT OF THE ELECTRICAL OUTLET AND FULLY INSERT.

This device is designed and manufactured to assure personal safety. Improper use can result in electric shock or fire hazard. The safeguards incorporated in this unit will protect you if you observe the following procedures for installation, use, and servicing. This device does not contain any user serviceable parts.

- Carefully read and follow the Manual and Quick Install Guide.
- Do not place the product near heat sources such as radiators, heat registers, stoves, or other products that produce heat.
- Do not use this product near water.
- Unplug the unit from the wall outlet before cleaning. Do not use liquid cleaners or aerosol cleaners. Use a damp cloth for cleaning.
- Power Adapter cords should be routed so that they are not likely to be walked on or pinched by items placed upon or against them.
- Do not overload wall outlets.
- Do not use this product during a storm. Unplug the unit from the wall outlet. If the product is to be left unattended for a long period of time. This will prevent damage to the product due to lightning and power-line surges.
- Do not attempt to service this product yourself. Opening the cover may expose you to dangerous voltage or other hazards. For service, please contact a qualified service technician.

Radio and TV Interference:

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

Any unauthorized changes or modifications to this equipment would void the user's authority to operate this device. This device complies with Part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) This device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

Introduction

D-Link[®] introduces the latest addition to its multimedia family of products: the **D**-Link[®] **MediaLounge™ DSM-120 Wireless Music Player.** The DSM-120 integrates personal computers and home entertainment centers, so that your digital music can be enjoyed anywhere throughout the house. The DSM-120 connects easily to a wired or wireless network. The DSM-120 features 802.11g wireless technology for transfer speeds of up to 54Mbps on a wireless network and can connect to a wired network at speeds up to 100Mbps. These options provide you with the maximum throughput for sharing and transferring digital media.

Simple to setup with a sleek design that makes it a natural addition to any home entertainment center. The Audio jacks on the back panel of the DSM-120 allow for direct connection to a pair of PC speakers or to your stereo. Use the included remote control to access media content stored on your PC or optional local storage. The DSM-120 lets you browse music files and access online music content through an existing broadband Internet connection.

With support for Windows[®] Connect Now, configuring the wireless settings is easier than ever before. Windows Connect Now allows you to run the Wireless Network Setup Wizard from Windows[®] XP and transfer the wireless settings to the DSM-120 using a USB thumbdrive.

D-Link[®] MediaLounge[™] File Manager allows you to transfer music files to your Hard Drive via the network. The File Manager software allows you to point to the folders on your PC's hard drive that contain the music files you want to copy. The D-Link[®] MediaLounge[™] File Manager software then copies the information to the optional Hard Drive on your DSM-120 via your wired/wireless network connection.

The DSM-120 adheres to the Universal Plug-&-Play AV specification, allowing it to communicate with other UPnP AV media devices.

You can stream MP3 and WMA files from your computer to the DSM-120 and enjoy them on your home stereo system.

Local Hard Drive playback and USB direct playback is available on the DSM-120. Simply insert a 2.5" Hard Drive into the DSM-120, or insert your USB thumbdrive for local music playback, no network or PC is needed!

A Mini-USB connection for direct transfer of music files to and from a PC.

Experience digital media like never before with the MediaLounge[™] DSM-120 Wireless Music Player. The DSM-120 includes everything you need to instantly access and play music using your home entertainment center.

Package Contents



- D-Link DSM-120 Wireless Music Player
- Printed Install Guide
 - CD-ROM with Manual (Contains D-Link Media Server Software, File Manager Software, Install Guide, and Manual)
- Ethernet (CAT5-UTP/Straight-Through) Cable
 - Standard Composite RCA Audio Cable
- Remote Control with Batteries
- Back Stand

- Mini-USB Cable
- Energy Star certified Power Adapter

System Requirements

- A wireless (802.11g or 802.11b) or Ethernet network.
- Minimum to run the Media Server software: PC with 500MHz processor, 128MB RAM and 50MB of available hard disk space.
- Windows[®] XP/2000.
- A CD-ROM drive.

Features and Benefits

- Stream music from a PC or D-Link Network Attached Storage to your entertainment center.
- Listen to digital music on your stereo system.
- Support for Windows[®] Connect Now for easy wireless setup.
 - Easily connect to your wireless network using 802.11g at up to 54Mbps. 802.11b compatible at 11Mbps.
- Connect using an Ethernet network cable at up to 100Mbps.
- UPnP AV and INMPR compliant for maximum compatibility.
- Support for most popular digital music formats.
- Sleek design complements your existing audio equipment.
- 64- or 128-bit WEP security.
 - Convenient one-touch access to copy music.
- Supports DHCP for easy connection to your home network.
 - Easy setup wizard.
 - Direct playback from external USB media.
 - 2.5" HDD Enclosure for local playback without a computer.
 - Set the alarm to wake/sleep to your selected music track.
- Built-in clock.

- Transfer music through a USB connection or Network.
- High-Fidelity Audio via optical S/PDIF





Getting Started To begin using the DSM-120 Wireless Music Player, you will need: An existing home network (including a wireless 802.11b or 802.11g router or a router/ hub with an available Ethernet port). The DSM-120 Media Server software installed on the PC you will be sharing files from. This computer will collect music content from local sources and from the Internet (downloaded MP3 music). The DSM-120 Wireless Music Player connected to your standard PC speakers or audio system. Optional: The 2.5" HDD can be used to play local music, but it must be partitioned in order to work with the DSM-120 (see page 62). Internet Cable/DSL Modem Wireless Router G 54 **Computer with** Wireless G Adapter DSM-120 Wireless Music Player (Speakers not included)

Using the Remote Control





You may be required to enter alphanumeric characters. To edit information on a screen, press the **Enter** button. To enter letters and/or numbers, use the navigation buttons (see below):



The recommended range for remote control usage is within 15 feet from the unit, with the remote angled at no more than 45 degrees.

Power	Turn the DSM-120 0N or 0FF.
Сору	Copy files from an optional attached USB drive to an optional Hard Drive inserted into the DSM-120.
Enter and Play/Pause	Submit entries and Play/Pause music files.
Navigation Buttons	Navigate through the DSM-120 menu. While playing music, the up arrow returns to the previous track and the down arrow continues to the next track.
Stop	Stop a music file that is playing.
PAGE UP/DOWN	Page Up to scroll up a page, and Page Down to scroll down a page.
VOLUME +	Increase the volume.
VOLUME -	Decrease the volume.
Mute	Mute the volume of the music file.
RWD	Rewind through a music file that is playing.
FF	Fast Forward through a music file that is playing.
Repeat	Repeat a music file or playlist.
Shuffle	Shuffle through a playlist.

Installing the D-Link® Media Server Software

To share audio files from your computer, it is necessary to install the D-Link[®] Media Server software on the PC that contains the files you want to share. The D-Link[®] Media Server software allows you to point to the folders on your PC's hard drive that contain the audio files you want to share. The D-Link[®] Media Server software then streams the information to your DSM-120 via your wired/wireless network connection.

Currently the DSM-120 only connects to one Media Server at a time. If more than one PC contains files you want to share, you can select one of the following options:

- 1. Copy all of the files to one computer designated to run the D-Link[®] Media Server Software.
- 2. Map network drives from the computer with the D-Link[®] Media Server software to additional computers that contain files you want to share. This method also allows you to share files from computers that cannot run the D-Link[®] Media Server software such as Macintosh systems. The computer running the D-Link[®] Media Server software must always be on when streaming content from any computer.
- 3. Install the D-Link[®] Media Server software on each computer. You can only connect to one server at a time. To connect to another server, you must go into the **Setup** and change the Default Server.

To install the D-Link[®] Media Server software, follow the steps on the following pages.

Note: If you have a version of the D-Link[®] Media Server already installed on your system, please uninstall the software and restart your system before installing a newer version of the software.





📳 Setup - D-Link Media S	erver _ 🗆 🗙
	Welcome to the D-Link Media Server Setup Wizard This will install D-Link Media Server on your computer. It is recommended that you close all other applications before confinang. Click Next to continue, or Cancel to exit Setup.
	Next> Cancel

	r B Setup - D-Link Media Server
The D-Link license agreement screen appears.	License Agreement Please read the following important information before continuing.
	Please read the following License Agreement. You must accept the terms of this agreement before continuing with the installation.
	D-Link Software License Agreement
	MICORIANI - READ BEFORE COPTING, INSTALLING OR USING PLEASE READ THIS AGREEMENT CAREFULLY BEFORE USING THIS SOFTWARE.D-LINK SYSTEMS, INC. ("D-LINK") WILL LICENSE THE SOFTWARE TO YOU ONLY IF YOU FIRST ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. BY INSTALLING AND/OR USING THE SOFTWARE YOU AGREE TO THESE TERMS. IF YOU DO ▼
	 I generate the agreement I go not accept the agreement
	<back next=""> Cancel</back>
Click Next	
Choose a Destination location or accept the	🖷 Setup - D-Link Media Server
default location. This is where the D-Link Media	Select Destination Location Where should D-Link Media Server be installed?
Server software will be copied to on your	Setup will install D-Link Media Server into the following folder.
system.	To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder, click Browse.
	At least 19.9 MB of free disk space is required.
Click Next	
Choose a Start Menu folder or accept the default	re Setup - D-Link Media Server
location.	Where should Setup place the program's shortcuts?
	Setup will create the program's shortcuts in the following Start Menu folder. To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder, click Browse. Dictink Media Server
	< Back Next > Cancel
Click Next	1



Choosing Music Files to Share

The D-Link[®] Media Server software enables you to share the files from your computer with the DSM-120. By sharing the files, there is no need to copy the files from your computer to the unit before they can play. The data is streamed directly from the files on your computer over the network to your DSM-120. Follow the steps on the following pages to choose the music files to share.

If you chose to create a desktop or Quick Launch icon during the software installation, click on the software installation, click Media Server software application.



If you chose not to create a desktop or Quick Launch icon during the software installation, then you can launch the application by going to your Start Menu, selecting All Programs, and then clicking on D-Link Media Server icon within the D-Link Media Server folder.



The File Types tab is where		🔜 D-Link Media Server			
you select the types of		Charad Ealder Madia Eilan 1	File Types About		
audio files that you want to share.		Audio Types Audio Types AlF,AIFF LPCM MP1,MPA	Video Types DAT_M1V MPG_MPEG_AVI MP4 V0B_M2V_MPEG2	Photo Types BMP GIF JPG JPE JPEG	
<i>Note:</i> The DSM-120 only supp WMA file types.	orts MP3 and	IF MP2 IF MP3 IF M3U.PLS IF 0GG IF WAV IF WAA	L MMAA	F PNG F TIF,TIFF	
					Selec <u>t</u> A Clear Al
		😤 D-Link Media Server			
The Shared Folder tab is where you select the folders that contain your audio files.		D-Link Media Server Shared Folder Media Files Shared Folder Shared Folder path	System File Types About		. <u>A</u> dd a f
The Shared Folder tab is where you select the folders that contain your audio files. Click Add a folder		D-Link Media Server Shared Folder Shared Folder Shared folder Shared folder path	System File Types About		Add af Befre ne Ref es
The Shared Folder tab is where you select the folders that contain your audio files. Click Add a folder		D-Link Media Server Shared Folder Media Files Shared Folder Shared Folder Shared folder path	System File Types About		Add af Betre he Rejes Delete a
The Shared Folder tab is where you select the folders that contain your audio files. Click Add a folder		D-Link Media Server Shared Folder Shared Folder Shared Folder Advanced Advanced	System File Types About		Add af Befre h e Ref es Delete a Delete
The Shared Folder tab is where you select the folders that contain your audio files. Click Add a folder		D-Link Media Server Shared Folder Shared Folder Shared Folder Advanced Advanced Status Status	System File Types About Source Scheduler disabled Server is active		Edite n Refee Delete a



The **Media Files** tab will show all your audio files as well as display important file information.

🛨 Movie	▲ Track name (title)	Genre	Artist	1
- Music	Drive	Bock	BEM	1
- All Tracks	Politik	Rock	Coldplay	
Plaulists	In My Place	Rock	Coldplay	
H Genres	God Put A Smile	Rock	Coldplay	
Artists	The Scientist	Rock	Coldplay	
- Austs	Clocks	Rock	Coldplay	
Church	Daylight	Rock	Coldplay	
Coldplay	Green Eyes	Rock	Coldplay	
- Cranberries	Warning Sign	Rock	Coldplay	
 Depeche Mode 	A Whisper	Hock	Coldplay	
Doors	U9. I ears in Heav	Uthers	Uthers	
- Duran Duran	A Hush Ur Blood	Rock	Coldplay	
- Joy Division	Howlude	Classic Book	Postlos	
Linkin Park	I Am The Walnus	Classic Rock	Reatles	
- Love And Bockets	Under the Milky	Alternative	Church	
- Morrisev	Zombie	Alternative	Cranberries	
New Order	Everything Counts	Alternative	Depeche Mode	
Nine Inch Nails	A View To A Kill	Others	Duran Duran	
Diffeoring	Love Will Tear Us	Alternative	Joy Division	
Others	crawling	AlternRock	Linkin Park	
Dester	Ball of Confusion	Alternative	Love And Rock	
- Frougy	No New Tale To	Hock	Love And Hock	
Soft Lell				
- The Utrspring				
- The Smiths				
Tool				
		1		
	- 4			

The D-Link® Media Server software configuration is complete!

Using the D-Link® Media Server Software

Accessing the Media on your PCs

Before you can access the media from a PC, you must install the D-Link[®] Media Server software (See page 15). Simply install the included software on each PC where music is stored.

If you selected the option to **Create a startup icon** during the Media Server software installation (See page 18), the D-Link[®] Media Server software will automatically start whenever you power on your PC.

Whenever you close the Media Server configuration window, you can return to the Media Server configuration window by clicking on the Media Server icon in your system tray.



Sharing Media Content in Folders

The D-Link Media Server will share media content from selected directory folders. All subfolders within a shared folder are shared as well.

The Shared Folders tab displays the list of shared folders.

Add folders where your music is stored, or remove folders you no longer wish to share. Depending on the number of files in your folders, there may be a slight delay before the path appears in the window.

Refreshing	Folder	Content
กษาเธิงแบบ	ΙΟΙϤΕΙ	GOIILEIIL

The D-Link Media Server software scans the folders you share when you initially **Add a folder**. If you copy additional files into these folders, they will be seen by the DSM-120 when you refresh the folder contents.

Refresh a folder: To refresh a folder's contents, select a folder and then click the **Refresh a folder** button.

Refresh multiple folders: Multiple folders can be selected if you hold down the **Ctrl** key while clicking on each folder. Click on the **Refresh a folder** button after you've selected all the folders to refresh.

Refresh all folders: All folders can be refreshed by clicking on the **Refresh all** button.

Scheduler: You can schedule the D-Link Media Server software to automatically refresh the contents of all of your folders.

Shared folder path		
C:\Documents and Sett	ings\mohm\My Documents\My Music\	
		Add a folder
		Befresh a folder
		Refresh all
		Delete a folder
		Dglete all
Idvanced	Scheduler disabled	
Status		
	Server is active	

- 🗆 x

Shared folder path C\Documents and Settings\mbm\My Documents\My Music\	
	Add a folder
	Befresh a folder
	Refresh all
	Delete a folder
	Dglete all
udvanced	
Scheduler disabled	
Status	
Securi is active	

		Shared Folder Media Server Shared Folder Media Files Syn Shared Folder Shared Gelder path Shared Gelder path CO.Documents and Servey M	Atem Får Types About adem/Mig Document/Mig Mutics
Click Scheduler if you want to setur an automatic refresh interval.	0	Advanced Scheduler Status	Refere a folder Oglete al Scheiduler disabled Server is active Close
			Scheduler
Click Time and select a time period. This is how often the server will refresh the folder contents.			C Disable Scheduler Time 30 min 1 hour 2 hours 0K 6 hours 12 hours

Naming the Media Server

The Media Server name is entered here. This is the server name that is displayed when searching for available media servers in the DSM-120 interface.

ledia Servers .ocal Media Ser	ver Name: DLINK	1		Apply
	and the second			
edia Clients Tra IP Address	nsfer Status Filename	File Size	Current Position	Current Status
edia Server Up	date			

Stopping the D-Link Media Server

To stop the D-Link[®] Media Server (and stop sharing your music on your PC), right-click on the server icon and select **Exit** from the server menu.

Note: The music files stored on your computer will be available to your DSM-120 only if the D-Link[®] Media Server is running. Online Music content that does not require PC-based software (such as Live365) can still be accessed from the DSM-120 without running the D-Link[®] Media Server software.



D-Link Media Server Menu

To open the D-Link Media Server menu, **right click** on the system tray icon. The server menu will then be displayed.



Using Windows® Media Connect Software

Windows[®] XP users with Service Pack 2 can utilize the Windows[®] Media Connect software in addition to or instead of using the D-Link Media Server software. The Windows[®] Media Connect software allows the DSM-120 to playback DRM (Digital Rights Management) protected files. The Windows[®] Media Connect software is available via Windows Update if you are using Windows[®] XP with Service Pack 2.



Configuring Windows® Media Connect

Launch the Windows® Media Connect software and the window below will appear:



	な Windows Media Connect	💽 🖬 🕹 🕹 🕹
Select your Media Player from the list.	Device3 Dick Systems, Inc level Degices Settings	
Click Close	Add Percentise	Heb Core

	🖕 Windows Media Connect 🦉 🐉 Windows Media Co
The Sharing tab is where you configure the folders that you want to share with your DSM-120.	Currently shared folders: Show folders shared with: All Devices Name Shared With Shared With Shared With Location Degoes Shared Shared With Shared With Shared With Location Shared With Shared With Shared With Shared With Location Shared With Shar
	الله Add Folder
Click Browse	Choose a folder to share, and then select when the folder is bestared and which devices should have access to it. Folder Name: Privacy Settings Only share this folder when I am logged on to this computer Only share this content available to all devices OMake this content available only to the selected devices below MyMediaPlayer
	ок с
Select the folder that	Select the folder that you want to share:
you want to share	Creenshots

	を Add Folder
	Choose a folder to share, and then select whe be shared and which devices should have acc
	Eolder: C:\Documents and Settings\Admin
	Privacy Settings
Click Make this content	Only share this folder when I am logged on to the Make this content available to all devices
	 make this content, available only to the selected in MyMediaPlayer
Click OK	
he folders that you want the DSM-120 to access.	Degos Sharing Settings
Click Automatically start folder sharing when Windows starts	édá Edár Banove Windows Media Connect Utáví startoj Edárstario Index startoj Edárstario Edárstaring Edárstario
Click Automatically start folder sharing when Windows starts	édd Edmore Windows Media Connect Windows Media Connect Extensional state States Extensional states Digos Extensional state folder sharing when lightows starts Digos Folder sharing is started. To stop sharing your designated folders, click Step.
Click Automatically start folder sharing when Windows starts The Settings tab allows you to automatically start folder sharing	@da Eda Exercise @Course more about <u>therical fidders</u> Image: Course of the image:
Click Automatically start folder sharing when Windows starts The Settings tab allows you to automatically start folder sharing when Windows starts. You can	@da Eds Bemore @Learn more about <u>therical fidders</u> Image: Connect Image: Connect Image: Connect Connect Connect Image: Connect Co
Click Automatically start folder sharing when Windows starts The Settings tab allows you to automatically start folder sharing when Windows starts. You can also Stop/Start sharing.	édd Edmore @Learn more about <u>sharing inders</u> Windows Media Connect Image: Start Sharing Image: Start Sharing Image: Start Sharing inder sharing inders Starts Dagoes Image: Starting is started. To stop sharing your designabed fidders, dick Stop. Image: Starting is started. To stop sharing your designabed fidders, dick Stop. Image: Starting is started. To stop sharing your designabed fidders, dick Stop. Image: Starting is started. To stop sharing your designabed fidders, dick Stop.

The DSM-120 supports additional file types that are not supported by the Windows[®] Media Connect software. The file types shown below are supported by both Windows[®] Media Connect and the DSM-120.

File Type	File Extension	Details
Audio		
Windows Media Audio	.wma	Does not support WMA lossless, WMA Pro
MP3	.mp3	Up to 320kbps
Playlists		
M3U	.m3u, .pls	MPEG Playlist File

Be sure to select the Windows[®] Media Connect server as the default server in the DSM-120 System Setup if you want to access the Windows[®] Media Connect software. To do so, select **Setup** on the Home screen and navigate to **System** by using the **down arrow** and then pressing **Enter**. Navigate to **Music Server** and press **Enter** to view a list of available servers.

Bystem	-()	Tal
(Music Server		>
Reset System		
Restart System		
Check Connectio	nn -	

Note: Windows[®] Media Connect currently does not support Fast Forward and Rewind with protected files.

Installing the File Manager Software

In order to transfer music files from a personal computer to the DSM-120's optional 2.5" Hard Drive (a 2.5" hard drive must be installed prior to transferring music files, see page 61), it is necessary to install the D-Link[®] MediaLounge[™] File Manager software on the PC containing the files you want to transfer. The File Manager software allows you to point to folders on your personal computer's hard drive that contains music files, and then allows you to copy the files to the DSM-120's optional 2.5" Hard Drive via a wired/wireless network connection.

Insert the DSM-120 CD-ROM into the CD-ROM drive and the following screen will appear.

Click on Install D-Link® File Manager



The D-Link[®] MediaLounge[™] File Manager Setup Wizard will appear.



Click Next

If you accept the terms of the License Agreement, select the option **I accept the agreement**. Click **Next** to continue with the installation.



Click Next

Choose a Destination location or accept the default location. This is where the File Manager software will be copied to on your system.	10 Setup - File Manager Select Destination Location Where should File Manager be installed? Setup will install File Manager into the following folder. To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder, click Browse. ENProgram Files/File Manager Bjowse
Click Next	At least 3.6 MB of free disk space is required.
Choose a Start Menu folder or accept the default location.	1 ¹⁰ Setup - File Manager Select Start Menu Folder Where should Setup place the program's shortcuts? Setup will create the program's shortcuts? Setup will create the program's shortcuts in the following Start Menu folder. To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder, click Browse. PLink MediaLoungeVille Manager
	(Back Next) Cancel
Select Create a desktop icon to access the program from your desktop.	16* SetUp - File Manager Image: I
	(Back Next) Cancel

	18 Setup - File Manager
	Ready to Install Setup is now ready to begin installing File Manager on your computer.
	Click Install to continue with the installation, or click Back if you want to review or change any settings.
	Destination location: C:\Program Files\File Manager
	Start Menu folder: D-Link MediaLounge\File Manager
Shok mistan	
	< <u>B</u> ack instal Cancel
The File Manager software will be copied to the specified locations on your computer.	
Chook Loungh File Manager	Setup - File Manager
	Euroch File Manager
	↑
To use the D-Link [®] MediaLounge [™] File Manager, s	see page 64.

Transferring Music with Mini-USB

The DSM-120 can easily transfer music files from your PC to your enclosed 2.5" Hard Drive via the supplied Mini-USB cable. Simply insert the Mini-USB cable into it's proper port on the backside of the DSM-120 (see the section on "Mini-USB Connection" on page 39), and insert the opposite end into a USB port on your PC. While connected, the DSM-120 will be unable to play music. The image below will continue to show on your DSM-120 until you decide to disconnect the Mini-USB cable.

WARNING: You must choose to safely remove the USB storage device on your PC before disconnecting your Mini-USB cable, or you may damage your Hard Drive (see "Disconnecting the Mini-USB cable" on page 35).

After the DSM-120 has detected your Mini-USB connection, the image on the right will be shown, and you will be unable to play music.



After your PC has detected your Mini-USB connection and the DSM-120 2.5" Hard Drive, simply drag and drop music files from your PC over to the DSM-120.

💈 My Computer		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>Vi</u> ew F <u>a</u> vorites <u>T</u> ools	Help	1
🕝 Back + 🕥 + 🏂 🔎 Se	earch 🌔 Folders 🔛 -	
Address 😼 My Computer		💌 🄁 Go
System Tasks	Hard Disk Drives	
View system information Change a setting	Cocal Disk (C:)	
Other Places		
My Documents Control Panel	Devices with Removable Storage	
Details 🛞	(A:) (D:) (E:)	
My Computer System Folder		

Note: Please remember to plug in the power adapter if you wish to transfer content via the Mini-USB port..

Disconnecting the Mini-USB cable

Before you disconnect the Mini-USB cable from your PC and the DSM-120, pay close attention to the system tray near the right corner of your monitor. There should be an icon that allows you to **Safely Remove Hardware**.

Mouse over the icon and you should see the functionality title as **Safely Remove Hardware**.



After double-clicking the **Safely Remove Hardware** icon, you should see the Safely Remove Hardware screen. At this point you can click the **Stop** button, or you can continue to verify which USB storage device you would like to stop by checking the **Display device components** checkbox. This will provide you with a hierarchy of attached USB devices in which you can stop.

	💈 Safely Remove Hardware 🛛 🖓 🔀
	Select the device you want to unplug or eject, and then click Stop. When Windows notifies you that it is safe to do so unplug the device from your computer.
	Generic volume - (E:)
	USB Mass Storage Device at Location 0
Check the Display device components checkbox, and you should see the DSM-120 USB Device.	Display device components <u>Close</u>

Disconnecting the Mini-USB cable (continued)

After clicking **Stop**, the Stop a Hardware Device screen will appear to confirm your request to stop the DSM-120. Click **OK**.



After you click **OK**, the Safely Remove Hardware screen will appear again and the USB Mass Storage device that was shown initially will eventually disappear. Also, the Safely Remove Hardware icon will inform you that it is now safe to remove the DSM-120. Click **Close** on the Safely Remove Hardware screen and disconnect the Mini-USB cable.

	💈 Safely Remove Hardware	? 🛛
	Select the device you want to unplug or eject, and then Windows notifies you that it is safe to do so unplug the c computer. <u>H</u> ardware devices:	click Stop. When levice from your
	<table-cell></table-cell>	
Click Close	Properties	<u>S</u> top
	Safe To Remove Hardware The 'USB Mass Storage Device' device can removed from the system.	now be safely
Connecting the DSM-120

Audio Connections

Select one of three ways to connect audio to your DSM-120:

• Composite Audio

Plug the supplied red and white connectors into the AUDIO R and AUDIO L (color-coded matching) jacks on the DSM-120.

Plug the opposite ends to the matching jacks on your audio system.



• Optical Digital Audio

Connect an optical audio connector into the S/PDIF connector on the DSM-120, and connect the matching opposite end of the cable to the audio input of your audio system.

Note: This cable is not supplied.

• Head Phone

Plug a standard mini-plug head phone jack into the HEAD PHONE connector on the DSM-120.

You can also connect standard PC speakers to the head phone jack.

Note: Head Phones and Speakers





0

3

0

8

nt

• • [

Network Connections

Select one of two ways to connect your DSM-120 to your network:

• Wireless Connection

If you are connecting wireless using the built-in antenna, then you do not need to connect the supplied Ethernet cable.

For an optimal wireless connection, place the antenna at a 90° angle as shown in the image to the right.

• RJ-45 Ethernet Connector

If you are connecting wired, insert the supplied Ethernet cable into the Ethernet network cable connector. Attach the other end to a router or hub on your network.

Note: You may have an Ethernet cable plugged into the unit and also connect wirelessly. Neither will interfere with the other, but only one network can be accessed at a time (wired or wireless). The network connection type is selected in the Setup Wizard and can also be changed by going to the Setup Menu. To access the Setup Menu, select **Setup** on the menu and press **Enter** on the remote control.

USB Connections

Select one of two ways to connect your DSM-120 with USB:

USB Connection

Connect a USB drive for local playback of music and to easily configure wireless network settings by using Windows Connect Now.



• Mini-USB Connection

You can directly transfer music files from your PC to the DSM-120 using the included Mini-USB cable to connect the DSM-120 to the USB port on the PC. You can also directly transfer music files from your DSM-120 to your PC.





The DSM-120 Setup Wizard

The DSM-120 Setup Wizard is navigated using the **navigation arrows** and the **Enter** button on the remote control. To toggle between the configuration options, use the **up** and **down arrows** on the remote control. To toggle between the Back, Next, and Rescan buttons, use the **left** and **right arrows** on the remote control. Press **Enter** to select a field or confirm a selection.

Welcome Screen

During the initial startup, the DSM-120 displays the Setup Wizard Welcome screen. Press the **right arrow** on the remote control to proceed to the next screen.

To skip the Setup Wizard, select **No**. Select **Yes** to continue.

Note: You do not have to setup your device if you simply want to playback local music content from your USB drive or hard disk drive.

To enter a **Device Name** press **Enter**. To enter alphanumeric characters, please see page 13.

Select your network **Connection Type**.

Select Site Survey or Manually Enter SSID.



Setup	Network	- 4))	Tal
Yes			
No			
+			•



Connection Type	-())	Tal
Wired		
Wireless		



For the wireless network connection, please	Site Survey	4) F.I
select the SSID of the network.	SSID SI m-Lounge 70 DH-D1784 80	3 WEP Y Y
Select your Wireless Mode. Your options are either Ad-Hoc or Infrastructure.	Wireless Mode AdHoc Infrastructure	4) T.I
Select your encryption setting. Your options are Disable , 64BitHEX , 128BitHEX , 64BitASCII , and 128BitASCII .	WEP Disable 64BitHex 128BitHex 64BitASCII	0 %i

Encryption	64-bit		128-bit		
	Character Length	Example	Character Length Example		
HEX	10	12345678FA	26	456FBCDF123400122225271730	
ASCII	5	DMODE	13	2005PIECAKES1	

Select your **Index Key.** You can select numbers between **1** and **4**.

Provide a **WEP key**. The key you enter here must match the key of the wireless network exactly.



Note: This screen is only available if you do not select Disable at the WEP screen.

Connection Mode

A DHCP-enabled router automatically assigns IP addresses to devices on your network. If you have a DHCP-enabled router, select **DHCP**.

If selecting **DHCP**, skip to page 43.

Provide an **IP Address** if you selected **Static IP.**

Provide a **Subnet Mask** if you selected **Static IP.**

Provide a Gateway if you selected Static IP.









Provide a DNS if you selected Static IP.



Your MediaLounge[™] DSM-120 is now ready to stream music content for enjoyment on your home entertainment center.

Wizard	1				()	۳.1
Your	setup	15	co	mpi	et	9
		08				

Windows[®] Connect Now Configuration

If you already have wireless settings configured on your PC, instead of using the setup wizard, you can use Windows[®] Connect Now to configure the wireless settings on your DSM-120.

Note: Windows Connect Now is only available on PCs running Windows[®] XP with Service Pack 2 installed.

In the menu bar, go to Start > All Programs > Accessories > Communications and click Wireless Network Setup Wizard.



Your system will display the Setup Wizard Welcome screen. Click **Next** to continue.

Wireless Network Setup Wiza	rd	×
((••))	Welcome to the Wireless Network Setup Wizard This wizard helps you set up a security-enabled wireless network in which all of your computers and devices connect through a wireless access point. (This is called a wireless infrastructure network)	
	To continue, click Next.	
	< Back Next > Cance	:

Select to add a new device to your existing wireless network and click **Next** to continue.

Wireless Network Setup Wizard		×
What do you want to do?		
Select a task:		
C Set up a new wireless network		
Add new computers or devices to the 'M-Lounge' network	k.	
< Back	Next >	Cancel

The wizard provides two methods for setting up a wireless network. Using a USB flash drive is recommended. Select to use a USB flash drive to save your wireless network settings and click **Next** to continue.



Plug your flash drive into a USB port on this computer. The drive letter will appear in the pull down menu. You can choose to use this drive or select another drive. Click **Next** to save your wireless settings to the USB flash drive. This may take a few seconds.

Save settings to your flash drive.	S
Plug your flash drive into any USB port on this computer, and wait for the drive letter to appear below.	
Use this drive letter or choose a different one.	
Flash drive: D:\	
The wizard will save your network settings to the flash drive. This could take up to 30 seconds	
< Back Next >	Cancel

This screen will appear when the wireless settings have been saved to the USB flash drive.

Wireless Network Setup Wizard	×
Transfer your network settings to your other computers or devices.	
Your network settings are saved to the flash drive. Now follow these steps:	
 Plug the flash drive into your wireless access point. Many devices will blink their lights three times when the transfer is complete; otherwise wait 30 seconds. 	
2. Plug the flash drive into each computer or device you want to add to your network.	
3. Plug the flash drive back into this computer, and then click Next.	
<back next=""> Cance</back>	

Next, remove the USB Flash Drive from your PC and insert into the USB port on top of the DSM-120.



The following screen will appear, prompting you to apply your wireless settings. Click **OK** to continue.

MCN	4) K.
Apply Windows Cor	nnect
Now Settings	?
Yes CNC	

The following screen confirms that your wireless settings have been applied. Click **OK**.



Next, remove the USB Flash Drive from the DSM-120 and insert it back into the USB port on your PC. Click **Next** to continue.



Wireless configuration using Windows Connect Now is now complete. The setup wizard will display the devices that have been setup with your wireless network. Click **Finish**.

Wireless Network Setup Wiza	rd	×
((†))	The wizard completed successfully Your wireless network is now ready to use. You have successfully set up the following devices:	
	DSM-120 Wireless Music Player	X N
	Print Network Settings For security reasons, remove network settings from my flash drive To close this wizard, click Finish.	
	< Back Finish Cano	el

DSM-120 Menu

Menu Basics

The DSM-120 uses an on-screen menu interface. As you move through the menus, you will use the **navigation buttons** on the remote control to move up, down, right and left. The highlight bar moves from item to item as you press the navigation buttons. In some instances you can press **Enter** on the remote control to access the menu within an item. You may see arrows running along the right side of the screen pointing up or down. These arrows allow you to uncover more information. For example, a down arrow hints that more items are available if you move the **down arrow** button. To move to the next menu screen, use the **right arrow**. Similarly, use the **left arrow** to move to the previous screen. See page 13 for more information on navigation arrows on the remote control.

Menu Home

From this home screen, you can access **PC Music, Local Music, Online Music,** or **Setup**. The DSM-120 Home screen is the top level menu.



Now Playing

If you are playing a music track and decide to return to the main menu, the music track will continue to play in the background and a fifth menu option will appear. Scroll down the main menu and you should see the **Now Playing** option. After selecting **Now Playing** the user will be returned to the playback screen that displays the title of the music track that is currently playing.

	Media	Lounge	T. 1
13	Local	Music	A
Q	Online	Music	>
Þ	Setup		
	Now F	Playing	

Note: The *Now Playing* option will only appear during playback of a music track.

PC Music

Music Quality

Your music listening experience on the media player depends upon the quality of your digital music files. Avoid quality settings below 48kbps as they are unsupported. For CD quality music, rip your MP3s at 128kbps or higher, with a sample rate of 44.1kHz.

Supported Music Formats

The following music file formats are supported:

- MP3 (up to 320 kbps) MPEG-1, Layer 3 Audio file -The standard Internet music file format. This is the most commonly used audio format.
 - WMA (Does not support WMA lossless, WMA Pro) Windows Media Audio file - Supported by the Microsoft Windows Media player and some music jukebox programs. Also supports WMDRM protected WMA files when using Windows Media Connect.

1

Organizing Music Files Music files are located on your PC and can be contained in one directory folder, or organized in several subfolders. 📔 My Music - 🗆 🗙 Ele Edit View Favorites Tools Help 🔇 Back 🔹 🕥 - 🏂 🔎 Search 🌔 Folders 💠 Address 🛃 C:\Documents and Settings\rrohm\My Documents\My Music 💌 🔁 Go 01 Drive 01 Politik P P R.E.M. Automatic For The People A Rush Of Blood To The Head 02 In My Place 03 God Put A Smile Upon Your e Face Coldplay A Rush Of Blood To The Head My Music 04 The Scientist 05 Clocks P Coldplay A Rush Of Blood To The Head A Rush Of Blood To The Head 06 Daylight 07 Green Eyes A Rush Of Blood To The Head A Rush Of Blood To The Head 08 Warning Sign 09 A Whisper A Rush Of Blood To The Head A Rush Of Blood To The Head 🚞 My Music - 🗆 🗙 <u>File Edit View Favorites Tools Help</u> 🔇 Back 🔹 🌔 👻 🏂 🔎 Search 🎼 Folders 🎼 🎲 X Address 🛅 C:\My Music 💌 🔁 Go Coldplay Eighties My Music Depeche Mode New Wave Party Music Favorite Songs

The DSM-120 automatically organizes your music files by genres, artists, albums, and tracks. This information is obtained from the ID3 tags in each of your music files. The ID3 tag is created for you when you rip (copy) your music from your CD. However, if your music files have incorrect or incomplete tags, the tracks may not appear where they should in your music categories.

Playing a Track

Once you enter the **PC Music** menu, there are several ways that you can view tracks:

- All Tracks
- Playlist
- Genres
- Artists
- Albums

Folders

Use the **navigation arrows** to navigate to the track you wish to play. Once you have located the appropriate track, highlight it and press **Enter** on the remote control. The track will begin playing on your stereo speakers.

To play a track starting from the main home screen:

- 1. Select the **PC Music** category from the Home screen.
- Select a viewing category. Use the down arrow and up arrow on the remote control to navigate to a viewing category (by All Tracks, Playlist, Genres, Artists, Albums, or Folders). Select the option by clicking Enter or the right arrow on the remote control.

Music S	Server	100	心門
< All Tra	eks		>
Playli:	st		
Genre	25		
Artisit	ts 👘		

3. Select a Track. Use the **up arrow** and **down arrow** buttons to navigate one track at a time. The **PAGE UP** and **PAGE DOWN** buttons can be used to navigate through the track list one page at a time.



4. After the appropriate track is highlighted, press **Enter** on the remote control. You should hear your selected music track playing.

Title

Shuffle and Repeat

When you are playing or repeating a group of tracks, you can randomize the play order by pressing the **Shuffle** button on the remote control.



To repeat a track or a group of tracks, click **Repeat** on the remote control. When the icon with the text **REPEAT ONE** appears, this will repeat the music track that is currently playing. When the icon with the text **REPEAT ALL** appears, this will repeat all of the tracks within your currently selected folder or playlist.





Online Music

Currently the DSM-120 supports Live365[™] online services.

New services will be added in the future and made available via firmware upgrades. If your DSM-120 is configured to perform firmware upgrades automatically (see **Version** on page 59 for details), then you will see new options as soon as they become available.

To access the Online Music section, select **Online Music** from the Home screen.

Live365[™]

Live365[™] is an Internet radio service that provides unlimited on-demand access to thousands of radio stations. The audio is streamed directly over the Internet. Live365[™] allows you to select your own preset stations and provides custom station recommendations.

Select **Online Music** from the Home screen. Press **Enter** on the remote control to select Live365[™].



Use the **up** and **down arrows** on the remote control to navigate through the options. Press the **Enter** or the **right arrow** button on the remote control to make a selection.

ALL Broadcasts: Displays all available internet radio stations.

My Presets: Displays your preset stations.

Recommendations: Lists recommended stations based on your preset stations.

Editor's Station Picks: Lists recommended stations based on your preset stations.

Genres: Lists stations according to genre.



Live365[™] (continued)

Before you are able to search and play for music files, you will need to login to Live365[™]. Use the **down arrow** to navigate towards the bottom of the list and select **Setup**. After you select **Setup**, you should see the option **Login**. After you login to Live365[™] you will be able to play music

Click Login to enter in your Login information. If you do not have a Live365 account, use you PC to sign up for one.	Live365 Setup	4) 7.11 >
	Live365 Login Name:	4) T.I
Enter in your Name (username) and Pswd (password), and select OK .	 Pswd:	(03003)

Setup

If you want to change the configuration of your setup you can select **Setup** from the Home screen.

For an explanation of the terminology used in the Setup functions, please see the Glossary.

Using the **up arrow** and **down arrow** buttons on your remote control, scroll down the list to highlight your selection then press **Enter** or the **right arrow** to select your choice.

Setup	- 4 9	T. 11
Network Wizard		32
EQ Mode		
System		
Clock		1200
		- N.

Navigating the menus

Use the **up** and **down arrow** buttons on the remote control to navigate between the options. Press **Enter** on the remote to select the highlighted item. Use the **up** and **down arrows** to toggle through the settings. Press **Enter** to make a selection.

Network Wizard

Press the **right arrow** to begin the Network Wizard.

To setup the Network, please see page 40 of this manual.



EQ Mode

Use the **up** and **down arrow** buttons on the remote control to navigate between the following options:

- Rock
- Pop
- Jazz
- Full Bass
- Full Treble
- Full Bass/Treble

EQ Mode () ¶.|| () Normal () Rock () Pop () Jazz

System

Use the **up** and **down arrow** buttons on the remote control to navigate between the following options:

Music Server: Displays all available music servers and allows the user to change servers.

Reset System: Resets to system defaults.

Restart System: Restarts your music player.

System	4))	Tal
< Music Server		>
Reset System		
Restart System		
Check Connection	n	

Check Connection: Select this option to check the validity of your network connection.

Some firmware updates may display an informational message telling you to upgrade your version of the D-Link Media Server software. Your current version of the software should still work, but to utilize all of the latest firmware features you should upgrade your Media Server software.

Please visit http://support.dlink.com for the latest version of the Media Server software.

Note: If you have a version of the D-Link Media Server already installed on your system, please uninstall the software and restart your system before installing a newer version of the D-Link Media Server software.

Clock

Use the **up** and **down arrow** buttons on the remote control to navigate between the following options:

"Current Time": Set the DSM-120 to the current time.

After clicking the **right arrow** or the **Enter** button on the remote control, you can begin to change the date and time.

Note: the date and time are displayed on the DSM-120 when the unit is powered off.

Time Zone: Displays all available time zones.

Sleep Timer: The options are OFF, 5 Min, 10 Min, 15 Min, 20 Min, 25 Min, 30 Min, 40 Min, 50 Min, 60 Min, 70 Min, 80 Min, and 90 Min.

Alarm Clock: The DSM-120 is equipped with an alarm clock feature. To set the alarm clock, please do the following:

- 1. Select **Set Alarm Clock.** Use the navigation buttons on the remote control to enter a time that you would like the alarm to start.
- 2. Select **Enable/Disable**, this will give you the choice to turn the alarm clock on or off. To turn the alarm clock on, select **Enable**.
- 3. Before selecting **Set Alarm Music**, play a music file from **Local Music** first. When the song is playing, return to this menu and select **Set Alarm Music**.

Note: Alarm music only works with music files from Local Music.

Time 09:12:49 Time Zone Sleep Timer Alarm Clock System Time (i) 7.1 2005/07/13 09:19Press Enter to Save Time Zone Pacific Time --8 Mountain Time Central Time -6 Eastern Time -5 Sleep Time OFF 5 Min 10 Min 15 Min Alarm Clock



Version

Use the **up** and **down arrow** buttons on the remote control to navigate between the following options:

Device Info: Displays information about your connection and DSM-120 firmware.

Auto Update: You can Enable or Disable DSM-120 to automatically look for updates.

Version	$ 0 \rangle$	T.I
< Device Info		>
Auto Update		
Update Version		

Update Version: Selecting this option allows you to manually update your DSM-120.

Hard Disk

Use the **up** and **down arrow** buttons on the remote control to navigate between the following options:

Selecting this option will provide information on the attached hard drive.

Use the **right-arrow** or press **Enter** to check the Hard Drive Capacity.



The information on your Hard Drive will be displayed here.

HD Capacity () T.I HDD Size : 19517 MB Used Size: 53 MB Free Size : 19463 MB

LCD Logo Displays

The DSM-120 contains several logos that are displayed in the upper right hand corner of the DSM-120.



2.5" Hard Drive

Installing an optional 2.5" Hard Drive

In order to use the **Local Music** option, you must have a standard IDE 2.5" Hard Drive installed in your DSM-120. The Hard Drive Enclosure is located on the back of your DSM-120, simply depress the locking tab and slide the cover off. Insert your 2.5" Hard Drive as shown in the picture below, and close the cover. Your DSM-120 should be ready to play music from your installed 2.5" Hard Drive.

Note: Hard Drive is not included with the DSM-120.

WARNING: You must unplug the power from the DSM-120 before inserting the Hard Drive.



Note: You must partition your 2.5" Hard Drive before you can use it in your DSM-120. Please see page 62 for instructions on partitioning the Hard Drive.

Note: The DSM-120 only supports a 2.5" Hard Drive with a FAT or FAT32 file system.

Note: Please set your 2.5" Hard Drive in "Master" mode. If you leave the settings in "Cable Select" or "Slave" mode, the DSM-120 will be unable to detect your hard drive..



Partition your 2.5" Hard Drive

For Windows XP/2000 computers:

1. Right-click on "My Computer" and choose Manage.

- 2. Under "Storage" on the Left pane, select Disk Management.
- Windows should now give you the option to initialize the disk. If not, locate the new drive, right-click on the new disk (where it reads "Disk#") and choose Initialize. (This step may not be required for some hard drives.)
- 4. Go through the wizard.
- 5. Once complete, locate your hard drive in the bottom-right pane. Right-click on the area with a status bar (to the right of the "Disk#") and choose New Partition.

Computer Management				_10 ×
Action View	12 12 12 13	E.		
Tree	Volume	Layout	Type	File System
Computer Management (Loca)	C(C) Partition Basic NTF5 C(D(DC) Partition Basic COP5			
Cisk Defragmenter Logical Drives Berlow Storage Berlow Storage Berlow Storage	Basic 74.52 GB Online	(C:) 74.52 GB NTF5 Healthy (System	ı)	<u> </u>
	CPDisk 1 Bask 55.88 GB Online	SS.00 GB Unalocated		Create Partition
		Primary Partition		Properties
				Help





6. Follow the directions of the partition wizard. The recommended partition type is "primary" and the recommended file system is "FAT32". Please note that Windows XP/2000 limits FAT32 partitions to 32GB.

Create Partition Wizard	×	2.	Create Partition Wizard
	Welcome to the Create Partition Wizard		Select Partition Type You can specify what type of partition to create.
	This wizard helps you create a partition on a basic disk.		Select the type of partition you want to create:
and the second se	A basic disk is a physical disk that contains primary partitions.		C Primary partition
	extended partitions, and logical drives. A basic disk may also contain volumes created with Windows NT 4.0 and earlier.		C Extended partition
and the second division of the second divisio	You can also use MS-DOS to gain access to partitions on basic disks.		C Logical drive
			Description
	To continue, click Next.		A primary partition is a volume you create using free space on a basic disk. Windows 2000 and other operating systems can start from a primary partition. You can create up to four primary partitions on a basic disk, or you can make three primary partitions and an extended partition.
	< Back Next > Cancel		< <u>B</u> ack Next> Cancel
3. Create Partition Wizard	×	4.	Greate Partition Wizard ×
Specify Partition Size How big do you want I	the partition to be?		Assign Drive Letter or Path You can assign a drive letter or drive path to a partition.
Choose a partition size	that is smaller than the maximum disk space.		Assign a drive letter:
Maujaum diak anagar	57004 MP		C Mount this volume at an empty folder that supports drive paths:
Maximum disk space.	5/224 MB		Biowse
Minimum disk space:	7 MB		Do not assign a drive letter or drive path
	< <u>B</u> ack Next> Cancel		<u> < ₿</u> ack <u>N</u> ext> Cancel
5. Create Partition Wizard	×	6.	Create Partition Wizard X
Format Partition You can customize th	e formatting of the partition.		Completing the Create Partition Wizard
Specify whether you v	want to format this partition.		You have successfully completed the Create Partition Wizard.
C Do not format t	his partition		You specified the following settings:
Format this par	tition with the following settings:		Partition type: Primary Partition
Formatting			Disk 1 Patition size: 57224 MB
<u>File</u> system to	ouse: 174162		Drive letter or path: F: File System: FAT32
Allocation un	it size: Default		Allocation Unit Size: Default
⊻olume label	: New Volume		To close this wizard, click Finish
Perform a	a Quick Format 🔲 Enable file and folder compression		
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel		<back cancel<="" finish="" td=""></back>

7. Once you've finished with the wizard, you should now be able to see the drive in Windows Explorer.

Note: Your DSM-120 only works with FAT or FAT32 file systems. You cannot create a partition larger than 32GB in size with the FAT32 file system by using the Format tool in Windows[®] 2000/XP (see page 64).



Create a Partition Larger than 32GB

To create a partition larger than 32GB for a DSM-120, there are three options:

- 1. There are tools that you may purchase or download from the Internet to partition the hard drive in FAT32 beyond 32GB.
- 2. Often a hard drive vendor includes partition software in the package for you to partition the hard drive.
- 3. Start from a Microsoft Windows 98/ME Startup disk and use the Fdisk tool included on the disk to partition your hard drive. For additional information about how to use a Microsoft Windows 98/ME Startup disk to format a hard disk, you can fnd an article in the Microsoft Knowledge Base, "How to Use Fdisk and Format to Partition/Repartition a Hard Disk".

Note: The DSM-120 does not support multiple partitions.

Using the File Manager

After clicking **Finish**, and only if you selected **Launch File Manager** at the end of the Setup Wizard, the File Manager program will automatically open.

To manually open the File Manager Program, select **Start > All Programs > D-Link MediaLounge > File Manager > File Manager**.

To establish a connection with your DSM-120, browse and double-click the device listed here.

D File Manager					
<u>D</u> evice <u>T</u> ransfer <u>H</u> elp					
Device(s) on Network:	Origin:				
	C:\Documents and	Settings\d-link\My Docu	ments\My Music\Ste	eophonics\Just Enough	Ed 🔻 主
	Name		Size	Date Modified	~
	🖉 03 - Mr_ Writer.wma	3	6276KB	2005-08-31 18:10	
My Music Player(192.168.0.2)	🖉 04 - Step On My Oli	d Size Nines.wma	4753KB	2005-08-31 18:11	
	🖉 05 - Have A Nice D	ay.wma	4061KB	2005-08-31 18:11	
1-	🖉 06 - Nice To Be Ou	t.wma	3733KB	2005-08-31 18:12	
	🛯 🔮 07 · Watch Them F	ly Sundays.wma	4163KB	2005-08-31 18:13	=
	🛛 🔮 08 - Everyday I Thir	nk Of Horses.wma	4032KB	2005-08-31 18:14	
My Music Player(192.168.0.4)	🖉 09 - Maybe.wma		5409KB	2005-08-31 18:14	
	🔮 10 - Caravan Holida	iy.wma	3813KB	2005-08-31 18:12	
	🕼 11 - Roofton wma		7406KR	2005-08-31 18:08	
	Destination:				
					- F
	Name	Siza	Date Modified		
	Inditio	5126	Date Modified		
	4				
	Status:	No device connected.			

After double-clicking your DSM-120 device, represented on the left window pane of the File Manager, the next screen will verify if you would like to connect to your DSM-120 Wireless Music Player.



After a connection has been established to your DSM-120, browse through your **Destination** area, the bottom window pane of the File Manager, and select a folder location. In the **Origin** area, the top window pane of the File Manager, browse through your computer's folders and select a music file. On the File Manager's menu bar, click **Transfer** and select **Upload**.

Select **Upload** from the **Transfer** menu, to upload a music file to the DSM-120.

Download	Origin: 				
Caprel Esc	C:\Documents and Settings\d-lin	k\My Docu	ments\My Music\Ste	eophonics\Just Enough	Ed 💌 🖸
	Name		Size	Date Modified	
	🙆 03 - Mr_ Writer.wma		6276KB	2005-08-31 18:10	
y Music Player (192.168.0.2)	🖉 04 - Step On My Old Size Nines.	vma	4753KB	2005-08-31 18:11	r
	🖉 05 - Have A Nice Day.wma		4061KB	2005-08-31 18:11	
	🖉 06 - Nice To Be Out.wma		3733KB	2005-08-31 18:12	
	🔮 07 - Watch Them Fly Sundays.w	ma	4163KB	2005-08-31 18:13	
	🖉 08 - Everyday I Think Of Horses.	wma	4032KB	2005-08-31 18:14	
Music Player(192.168.0.4)	🧐 09 - Maybe.wma		5409KB	2005-08-31 18:14	L
	🙋 10 - Caravan Holiday.wma		3813KB	2005-08-31 18:12	6
	I I - Bootton wma		/4H6K.B	2005-08-31 18:08	U
	Destination:				
	/				- 1
	Name	Size	Date Modified		1
			2005-06-30 12:11		0
	🛅 Swing				
	🛅 Swing 🛅 Modern Jazz		2005-06-30 12:11		
	🗀 Swing 🍋 Modern Jazz 🇀 Classical Jazz		2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11		
	Cassical Jazz		2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11		
	Cassical Jazz Cassical Jazz Cassical Jazz Cassical Rag Time		2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11		
	Swing Modern Jazz Classical Jazz Classical Bag Time Disco		2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11		
	Swing Modern Jazz Classical Jazz Classical Rag Time Disco Metal		2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11		
	Swing Modern Jazz Classical Jazz Classical Rag Time Disco Metal Set up DFF of That Thing,MP3	5748KB	2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2005-06-30 12:11 2004-04-20 17:00		

Note: You can also transfer music from the DSM-120 to your computer by selecting a music track from the **Destination** area, and then selecting **Download** from the **Transfer** menu.

After the file has completely copied over, you should notice the music file appears in the Destination area of the File Manager. Also, pay close attention to the Status message located near the bottom of the File Manager.

	D File Manager				X
	Device Transfer Help				
	Device(s) on Network:	Origin:			
	1	C:\Documents and Settings\d-link\My Do	cuments\My Music\Ste	reophonics\Just Enough	Ed 💌 主
		Name	Size	Date Modified	~
		🙆 03 - Mr_ Writer.wma	6276KB	2005-08-31 18:10	
	My Music Player(192.168.0.2)	🖉 04 - Step On My Old Size Nines.wma	4753KB	2005-08-31 18:11	
		🙆 05 - Have A Nice Day.wma	4061KB	2005-08-31 18:11	
		🙆 06 - Nice To Be Out.wma	3733KB	2005-08-31 18:12	
		🔮 07 - Watch Them Fly Sundays.wma	4163KB	2005-08-31 18:13	=
		🙆 08 - Everyday IThink Of Horses.wm a	4032KB	2005-08-31 18:14	
	My Music Player(192.168.0.4)	🥙 09 - Maybe.wma	5409KB	2005-08-31 18:14	
		🖄 10 - Caravan Holiday.wma	3813KB	2005-08-31 18:12	
		🕼 11 - Boofton wma	7406KB	2005-08-31 18:08	
		Destination:			
		7			- 🗈
		Name Siz	e Date Modified		~
		C Swing	2005-06-30 12:11		
		🛅 Modern Jazz	2005-06-30 12:11		
		Classical Jazz	2005-06-30 12:11		
		Classical	2005-06-30 12:11		
		🚞 Rag Time	2005-06-30 12:11		
		Cisco Disco	2005-06-30 12:11		
		Contraction Metal	2005-06-30 12:11		
		206 · Nice To Be O 3733Ki	B 2005-08-31 18:12		
Status displays the	1	Get up. OFF of That Thing MP3 57/9K1	R 2004-04-2017-00		
otatao alopiayo tilo					
current action of the		Status: Copying file 06 - Nice To Be Out.wma	: 100% completed.		
	Ľ				
File Manager.					
J -					

If you need to disconnect or connect to your device, simply select **Connect** or **Disconnect** from the Device menu. Select **Refresh** to refresh the lists.

Connect Disconnect	Origin:				
Defrech ES	C:\Documents and Setting:	s\d-link\My Docu	iments\My Music\Stei	eophonics\Just Enough	Ed 💌
Kellesii 15	Name		Size	Date Modified	
	🖉 03 - Mr_ Writer.wma		6276KB	2005-08-31 18:10	
1y Music Player[192.168.0.2]	🖉 04 - Step On My Old Size N	ines.wma	4753KB	2005-08-31 18:11	
	🦉 05 - Have A Nice Day.wma		4061KB	2005-08-31 18:11	
	🙋 06 - Nice To Be Out.wma		3733KB	2005-08-31 18:12	
	🖉 07 - Watch Them Fly Sund	ays.wma	4163KB	2005-08-31 18:13	
	🙆 08 - Everyday IThink Of Ho	orses.wma	4032KB	2005-08-31 18:14	
My Music Player(192.168.0.4)	🙆 09 - Maybe.wma		5409KB	2005-08-31 18:14	
	🙋 10 - Caravan Holiday.wma		3813KB	2005-08-31 18:12	
	🕼 11 - Boofton wma		7406KB	2005-08-31 18:08	
	Destination:				
	/				-
	Name	Size	Date Modified		
	🥙 When you believe(4340KB	1979-12-31 16:00		
	🦉 When you believe(4340KB	1979-12-31 16:00		
	🦉 When you believe(4340KB	2000-01-01 16:00		
	🦉 When you believe(136KB	1985-08-23 17:00		
	🥙 When you believe(4340KB	1979-12-31 16:00		
	🥙 When you believe	4340KB	2002-12-07 16:00		
	🦉 When you say not	5042KB	1979-12-31 16:00		
	🥙 When you say not	5042KB	2003-01-18 16:00		

To delete a music file, simply right-click on the music file and you should see a sub-menu. The options of the sub-menu are **Download**, **Delete**, **Rename**, and **New Folder**. Selecting **Delete** will remove the file permanently from the DSM-120.



Note: Deleting a file from the DSM-120 will not delete it from the PC!

Volume

Press the **Volume (+)** and **Volume (-)** buttons on the remote control to higher and lower the volume respectively on the DSM-120. When pressing the **Volume** buttons, the DSM-120 screen should change to a Set Volume screen (see image below) that displays a decibel output level.

Set Volume	4) %.1
85	
	7

Pressing the **Mute** button on the remote control will mute the sound from the DSM-120 (see image below).





Note: Do not unplug the DSM-120 during the copy process. D-Link is not responsible for hardware failure caused by user error.

Frequently Asked Questions

What kind of files are supported by the DSM-120?

Audio - MP3 and WMA

What do I need to setup D-Link's DSM-120?

You must have a Microsoft Windows-based home network in place, with at least one PC running Microsoft Windows XP/2000.

Will any software need to be installed on my computer?

Yes, the D-Link Media Server Software, Windows[®] Media Connect, or any UPnP AV compliant media server software needs to be installed on a networked Windows-based PC.

What operating system do I need to run the server software?

Windows XP/2000

How does the D-Link DSM-120 get its files from my computer?

As soon as you have installed the D-Link[®] Media Server software on your PC, the server software will be launched, allowing you to add media files. You may then select folders that contain music that you want to play.

Can I access Live365 without the Media Server software running?

• Yes, by selecting the **Online Music** option from the Home screen.

If I am running Windows[®] Media Connect, do I need to run the D-Link[®] Media Server software?

No, you may run both applications but it is not necessary to run both at the same time.

What about Copy Protection and DRM support?

The most common method of copy protection is WMA DRM (Digital Rights Management). The DSM-120 can play these types of files if you are using the Windows[®] Media Connect software. For instructions on configuring Windows[®] Media Connect, please see page 23.

Can I use my Universal remote control?

No, the DSM-120 is not compatible with a universal remote but you can use a remote with learning ability.

Can I connect the DSM-120 directly to a PC without using a router or a hub?

Yes, please make note of the following:

Wireless Users: Set the Mode to Ad-Hoc in the wireless settings.

Wired Users: Connect an Ethernet cable directly from the DSM-120's Ethernet port to the Ethernet port on your PC. The DSM-120's Ethernet port is Auto MDI/MDI-X, so a special Ethernet cable is not required.

All Users: If DHCP software isn't running on your computer, you will need to assign a static IP address to the DSM-120.

Note: Online Music and firmware upgrades are not available without an Internet connection.

How do I change the bit rate of an audio file?

There are various conversion programs available for download on the Internet.

How do I copy files from my PC?

You can copy files from your PC by using the D-Link[®] MediaLounge File Manager Software, please see page 31. You can also copy files from your PC to your USB thumbdrive and then use the **Copy** button while your thumbdrive is connected to your DSM-120. Another alternative to copying files is using the Mini-USB cable to transfer files directly from your PC.

Can I transfer files to my DSM-120 via network connection?

Yes you can transfer files to your DSM-120 by using the D-Link[®] MediaLounge File Manager Software, please see page 31.

Why is the volume not adjustable via digital optical output?

The digital optical output is pass-through only. The volume is controlled by your receiver.

Troubleshooting

I cannot see the Setup Wizard when I turn on my DSM-120 player for the first time.

Make sure you have firmly attached the power adapter plug to the back of the player. Also, verify the power adapter is plugged into a working power outlet and that the outlet is not controlled by a light switch.

I've updated the firmware on my DSM-120 but all of the features do not work.

Be sure you've updated to the latest version of the D-Link Media Server software as well.

You can download the latest version at http://support.dlink.com

My remote control isn't working.

- Make sure the batteries are inserted correctly.
- Try removing the batteries and reinserting them without touching any buttons on the remote control.
- Replace the batteries with new ones.

I can't use my HDD or USB device that I just installed.

Please make sure that it is a FAT or FAT32 File System. Reformatting your Hard Drive to this File System may be required.

Note: Reformatting your drive will wipe out everything.

How do I turn on the LCD backlight when the DSM-120 is turned off so that I may be able to read the time?

Press any key (other than the power key) on the remote, or on the device, to turn on the backlight. The backlight will stay lit for five seconds before turning off again.
I can't find any of my music.

- Make sure your computer is powered on and that it has not entered standby mode. You may need to change your computer's power settings if you want your content to be available all the time.
- Make sure the Media Server software is running on your computer. Look for the Media Server icon in your system tray. If necessary, start the Media Server software again.
- Click on the Media Server icon and select Show Media Server to verify you are sharing the correct directories.
- If using a wired network, verify the Ethernet cable is properly attached to your DSM-120 and to a network switch, hub or router. Verify that the switch, hub or router is powered on.
- If you are using static IP addresses, verify the IP address and netmask are in the same range as other addresses on your network. Verify that the address is not already in use by another PC or device.
- Make sure the files you are sharing use a supported file format and encoding scheme.

I can't hear any sound when I'm playing music.

- Make sure the audio cables are properly connected.
- If the audio cables are connected to your TV, the TV must be on to hear any music.
- If the audio cables are connected to your stereo, make sure the stereo is on and you have the correct stereo input source selected. If you are having trouble selecting the correct audio source, refer to the instructions that came with your stereo.

Some of my MP3 and WMA files don't appear.

- The DSM-120 supports the most common music file formats. However, there are almost an infinite variety of bit rates and sample rates. If a file does not appear on the receiver, it most likely uses an unsupported rate.
- The files may be copy protected. To share your files, turn copy protection off when you rip them

Note: WMA DRM files can be played by using Windows[®] Media Connect Server software, see page 23 for details.

- The following MP3 sample rates are supported:
 - 4, 8, 16, 22.05, 24, 32, 44.1, 48, 88.2 and 96 kHz.
- For best results, rip your MP3 files at 320 kbps or higher, with a sample rate of 44.1 kHz.

I am not able to play certain media files.

The DSM-120 supports most industry standard file formats but even supported file formats can be encoded in ways that are not supported. Try exporting media with

Checking the bit and sample rates of a music file.

- To check the bit and sample rates of a music file:
- 1. Right-click on the file and select **Properties**.
- 2. Select the **Summary** tab and click the **Advanced** button. Scroll to the bottom of the list.

The file to the right has a bit rate of 128 kbps and a sample rate of 44 kHz.

In most cases, the sample rate does not matter unless you come across a file that will not play or appear on your player. Use the above procedure to check the file settings for supported rates.

Property	Value	
La Year La Track Number La Genre La Lyrics	9 rock	
Description		
📝 Title	Compliment	
Comments		
Origin		
Protected	No	
Audio		
Duration	0:03:01	
Bit Rate	128kbps	
Channels	2 (stereo)	
Audio sample	rate 44 kHz	

I created a playlist on my computer, but it doesn't appear on my music player.

Make sure the playlist file is located in a folder shared by your music player. Copy the playlist to your shared music folder or click on the Media Server icon to add or change your folder options.

How do I reset my DSM-120?

Under normal circumstances, you should not need to reset your music player. However, to fully reset the music player, lightly insert a paper clip into the reset opening on the unit's rear panel for ten seconds.

What version of firmware do I have?

From the main home screen, select **Setup** and then select **Version**. Under the **Version** menu, select the option **Device Info**. The firmware version will be listed here.

I am unable to access Napster[™] content.

- Make sure you have Windows[®] Media Connect running and that you are sharing the folder that contains the Napster[™] audio files.
- Make sure you have validated the D-Link[®] player from within Windows[®] Media Connect.

I was able to browse and play content from my music player, but now I can no longer browse or play any content from my media server.

This is a problem we have noticed with Norton Anti-Virus 2005. Your music player caches the available media server for 30 minutes. During this time, if the connection between your PC media server and the media player was disconnected, you will need to restart your PC to solve this issue.

When sharing files with the D-Link Media Server, my PC is very slow.

If you are sharing gigabytes of content, please make sure that you are not running any other software that requires high CPU usage.

It takes a long time to share files with the D-Link Media Server.

If you are sharing gigabytes of content with your media server software, it may take several minutes depending on the size of the content you are sharing.

The list of music tracks show up as either blank fields or strange characters.

Make sure you have english only in your file's metadata. Unicode is not supported at this time.

What is the largest single file size that a DSM-120 can support from the local hard disk?

The largest possible file for a FAT32 volume is 4GB.

Technical Specifications

Network*

- TCP/IP (DHCP or Static IP Address)
- 802.11g Wireless (Supports up to 54Mbps transfer rate)
- 802.11b Wireless (Supports up to 11Mbps transfer rate)
- Wired LAN: 10/100Mbps

Media Streaming Protocol

• HTTP

Supported Audio Formats:

- MP3 (up to 320 kbps)
- WMA (Does not support WMA lossless, WMA Pro)

Audio Playlist Formats:

- M3U
- PLS

Outputs:

- RCA Audio Jacks
- Optical Digital Audio
- Head Phones Jack

Antenna:

- Type: 2.4GHz swivel-type monopole antenna
- Frequency: 2.4GHz to 2.5GHz
- Impedance: 50 ohms
- Gain: 2dBi

Dimensions

- H x W x L: 1.5" x 11.25" x 16.75"
- Weight: 5.5 pounds

Security:

- Hardware based WEP (Wired Equivalent Privacy)
- Up to 128-bit encryption

Configuration:

- UPnP-AV 1.0 Enabled
- INMPR Compliant

* Maximum wireless signal rate derived from IEEE Standard 802.11a and 802.11g specifications. Actual data throughput will vary. Network conditions and environmental factors, including volume of network traffic, building materials and construction, and network overhead, lower actual data throughput rate.

** Environmental conditions may adversely affect wireless signal range.

PC System Requirements

- Connection to 802.11g wireless or Ethernet network
- Windows 2000 or XP
- 500MHz processor
- 128MB memory
- 20MB available hard disk space
- CD-ROM drive
- Broadband Internet Service (For online music access and firmware updates)

Power Source:

• 12V, 1.25A.

Environmental specification

- Operating temperature: 0°C to 45°C
- Storage temperature:-25°C to 55°C
- Operating relative humidity: 10% to 95% non-condensing

Warranty:

• 1 Year

Appendix

Setting Microsoft Windows Power Options

If you want access to your music all the time from your PC, make sure to configure your PC's power settings. Do not allow your computer to enter a standby power state, or you will have to "wake up" your PC to view music on your DSM-120. However, your monitor can be in a low power state or turned off.

To change your power settings on Windows XP:

- 1. Click on Start.
- 2. Select Control Panel.
- 3. Select Performance and Maintenance.
- 4. Select Power Options.
- 5. Change both System standby and System hibernates to Never.
- 6. Click **0K**.

To change your power settings on Windows 2000:

- 1. Click on Start.
- 2. Select Settings.
- 3. Select Control Panel.
- 4. Select Power Options.
- 5. Change both System standby and System hibernates to Never.
- 6. Click **0K**.

Wireless Installation Considerations

The D-Link® DSM-120 can be integrated into a wireless network from virtually anywhere within its operating range. However, the range can be limited by the number of walls, thickness of walls, and location of the walls that the wireless signal must pass through. Typical ranges vary depending on the types of materials and background RF (radio frequency) noise in your home or business. The key to maximizing wireless range is to follow these basic guidelines:

- Keep the number of walls and ceilings between the DSM-120 and other network devices to a minimum. Each wall or ceiling can reduce your DSM-120's range from 3-90 feet (1-30 meters).
- Be aware of the direct line between network devices. A wall that is 1.5 feet thick (.5 meters), at a 45-degree angle appears to be almost 3 feet (1 meter) thick. At a 2-degree angle it looks over 42 feet (14 meters) thick! Position devices so that the signal will travel straight through a wall or ceiling (instead of at an angle) for better reception.
- Building materials can impede the wireless signal. A solid metal door or aluminum studs may have a negative effect on the range. Try to position wireless devices and computers with wireless adapters so that the signal passes through drywall or open doorways and not other materials.
- Keep your product away (at least 3-6 feet or 1-2 meters) from electrical devices or appliances that generate RF noise.
 - You can also add a directional antenna to help with range and sensitivity issues.

Partitioning a FAT32 Hard Drive

The 127.5 GB limit on FAT32 volumes imposed in Windows 98 no longer applies to Windows ME. In Windows ME, using a cluster size of 32 KB, a FAT32 volume can theoretically be about 8 terabytes. However, the 32-bit fields in the partition table (and in the FAT32 boot sector) limit the size of an individual volume (regardless of file system) on a basic MBR disk using a sector size of 512 bytes to approximately 2 terabytes.

FAT32 file system cluster sizes

Partition Size	Cluster Size
less than 260MB	512 Bytes
260MB through 8GB	4KB
8GB through 16GB	8KB
16GB through 32GB	16KB
32GB through 2TB	32KB

However, as Windows 2000 or Windows XP fully supports using a FAT32 partition over 32GB, and only does not permit formatting a FAT drive over 32GB, it is possible to use a Windows 98 or Windows Me boot diskette to get a larger FAT partition formatted. Just be extremely careful that the correct partition is formatted when booting from a diskette.

Glossary

Networking

802.11b: A wireless networking standard that supports data encryption and up to 11Mbps bandwidth.

802.11g: A wireless networking standard that supports data encryption and up to 54Mbps bandwidth.

Ad-Hoc: This wireless networking mode means that two PC's are communicating in a Peerto-Peer network, without a router or an access point.

Bandwidth: A measure of the rate at which data can be sent and received through the network. This value is usually given in bits per second (bps) or Megabits per second (Mbps).

DHCP (Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol): A protocol that network devices use to obtain an IP address, subnet mask, gateway, and DNS addresses automatically. A DHCP server can be a router, ISP server, or PC running Internet Connection Sharing software. If you are using a DHCP-capable device in your network, you will <u>not</u> need to assign a static IP address to your DSM-120. However, if you do not have a DHCP-capable device in your network, you will need to assign a static IP address to your DSM-120.

DNS (Domain Name System): A system used to translate computer names into IP addresses. For example, a DNS server would translate www.dlink.com into 64.7.210.132

Ethernet: The most commonly used wired network technology. Standard Ethernet supports up to 10Mbps. Fast Ethernet supports up to 100Mbps.

Gateway: This is the IP address of the device that connects you to another network such as a router. A router would be the gateway between your local area network and the Internet.

Infrastructure: This wireless networking mode is used by wireless networks with a router or an access point.

IP Address (Internet Protocol Address): An IP address consists of four groups of digits separated by periods. Each group of digits contain an 8-bit value as a number ranging from 0 to 255. Each computer must have it's own unique IP address. The IP addresses on your network must be within the same range. For example, if one PC or device has an IP address of 192.168.0.2, the other devices should have IP addresses that are sequential, like 192.168.0.3 and 192.168.0.4.

ISP (Internet Service Provider): A commercial organization that provides subscribers with access to the Internet.

Key: Encryption keys allow you to easily change wireless encryption settings to maintain a secure network. The DSM-120 supports 64-bit and 128-bit keys.

Netmask: Commonly referred to as subnet mask, this is used to determine what subnet an IP address belongs to.

RJ-45: RJ-45 is the standard connector for Ethernet cabling. It looks like a phone cable connector, but is slightly larger. RJ-45 connectors have 8 pins, 4 of which are used for transmitting and receiving data.

SSID (Service Set Identifier): The name designated for a specific wireless local area network (WLAN). The SSID can be easily changed to connect to an existing wireless network.

Static IP: A static IP address is configured manually on the device that will be using it. A static IP address remains the same constantly and must be a unique address.

WEP (Wired Equivalent Privacy): A security protocol for wireless local area networks (WLAN) that is designed to provide the same level of security as a wired network. WEP provides security by encrypting the data sent over the WLAN. The DSM-120 supports 64-bit and 128-bit encryption.

Wired: Devices networked via Ethernet cabling.

Wireless: Devices networked using radio frequencies instead of physical cabling.

Music

M3U is a playlist format and is the default playlist format of WinAMP and most other media player software. It allows multiple files to be queued in a program in a specific format.

MP3 is the file extension for MPEG-1, audio layer 3. Layer 3 is one of three coding schemes (layer 1, layer 2 and layer 3) for the compression of audio signals. Layer 3 removes the redundant and irrelevant parts of a sound signal, which the human ear does not hear. It uses Modified Discrete Cosine Transform to implement a filter bank, increasing the frequency resolution 18 times higher than that of layer 2.

PLS is a proprietary playlist format used for playing Shoutcast and other audio streams.

WMA is short for Windows Media Audio and is an audio format that was created by Microsoft. It is similar to MP3, although WMA can compress at a higher rate than MP3.

Technical Support

Technical Support

You can find software updates and user documentation on the D-Link website.

D-Link provides free technical support for customers within the United States and within Canada for the duration of the warranty period on this product.

U.S. and Canadian customers can contact D-Link Technical Support through our website, or by phone.

Tech Support for customers within the United States:

D-Link Technical Support over the Telephone: (877) 453-5465 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

D-Link Technical Support over the Internet: http://support.dlink.com e-mail:support@dlink.com

Tech Support for customers within Canada:

D-Link Technical Support over the Telephone: (800) 361-5265 Monday to Friday 7:30am to 9:00pm EST

D-Link Technical Support over the Internet: http://support.dlink.ca e-mail:support@dlink.ca

Warranty

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, D-Link Systems, Inc. ("D-Link") provides this Limited Warranty:

· Only to the person or entity that originally purchased the product from D-Link or its authorized reseller or distributor, and

• Only for products purchased and delivered within the fifty states of the United States, the District of Columbia, U.S. Possessions or Protectorates, U.S. Military Installations, or addresses with an APO or FPO.

Limited Warranty: D-Link warrants that the hardware portion of the D-Link product described below ("Hardware") will be free from material defects in workmanship and materials under normal use from the date of original retail purchase of the product, for the period set forth below ("Warranty Period"), except as otherwise stated herein.

- · Hardware (excluding power supplies and fans): One (1) year
- · Power supplies and fans: One (1) year
- · Spare parts and spare kits: Ninety (90) days

The customer's sole and exclusive remedy and the entire liability of D-Link and its suppliers under this Limited Warranty will be, at D-Link's option, to repair or replace the defective Hardware during the Warranty Period at no charge to the original owner or to refund the actual purchase price paid. Any repair or replacement will be rendered by D-Link at an Authorized D-Link Service Office. The replacement hardware need not be new or have an identical make, model or part. D-Link may, at its option, replace the defective Hardware or any part thereof with any reconditioned product that D-Link reasonably determines is substantially equivalent (or superior) in all material respects to the defective Hardware. Repaired or replacement hardware will be warranted for the remainder of the original Warranty Period or ninety (90) days, whichever is longer, and is subject to the same limitations and exclusions. If a material defect is incapable of correction, or if D-Link determines that it is not practical to repair or replace the defective Hardware, the actual price paid by the original purchaser for the defective Hardware will be refunded by D-Link upon return to D-Link of the defective Hardware. All Hardware or part thereof that is replaced by D-Link, or for which the purchase price is refunded, shall become the property of D-Link upon replacement or refund.

Limited Software Warranty: D-Link warrants that the software portion of the product ("Software") will substantially conform to D-Link's then current functional specifications for the Software, as set forth in the applicable documentation, from the date of original retail purchase of the Software for a period of ninety (90) days ("Software Warranty Period"), provided that the Software is properly installed on approved hardware and operated as contemplated in its documentation. D-Link further warrants that, during the Software Warranty Period, the magnetic media on which D-Link delivers the Software will be free of physical defects. The customer's sole and exclusive remedy and the entire liability of D-Link and its suppliers under this Limited Warranty will be, at D-Link's option, to replace the non-conforming Software (or defective media) with software that substantially conforms to D-Link's functional specifications for the Software or to refund the portion of the actual purchase price paid that is attributable to the Software. Except as otherwise agreed by D-Link in writing, the replacement Software is provided only to the original licensee, and is subject to the terms and conditions of the license granted by D-Link for the Software. Replacement Software will be warranted for the remainder of the original Warranty Period and is subject to the same limitations and exclusions. If a material non-conforming Software, the price paid by the original licensee for the non-conforming Software will be refunded by D-Link; provided that the non-conforming Software (and all copies thereof) is first returned to D-Link. The license granted

Non-Applicability of Warranty: The Limited Warranty provided hereunder for Hardware and Software portions of D-Link's products will not be applied to and does not cover any refurbished product and any product purchased through the inventory clearance or liquidation sale or other sales in which D-Link, the sellers, or the liquidators expressly disclaim their warranty obligation pertaining to the product and in that case, the product is being sold "As-Is" without any warranty whatsoever including, without limitation, the Limited Warranty as described herein, notwithstanding anything stated herein to the contrary.

Submitting A Claim: The customer shall return the product to the original purchase point based on its return policy. In case the return policy period has expired and the product is within warranty, the customer shall submit a claim to D-Link as outlined below:

• The customer must submit with the product as part of the claim a written description of the Hardware defect or Software nonconformance in sufficient detail to allow D-Link to confirm the same, along with proof of purchase of the product (such as a copy of the dated purchase invoice for the product) if the product is not registered.

• The customer must obtain a Case ID Number from D-Link Technical Support at 1-877-453-5465, who will attempt to assist the customer in resolving any suspected defects with the product. If the product is considered defective, the customer must obtain a Return Material Authorization ("RMA") number by completing the RMA form and entering the assigned Case ID Number at https://rma.dlink.com/.

• After an RMA number is issued, the defective product must be packaged securely in the original or other suitable shipping package to ensure that it will not be damaged in transit, and the RMA number must be prominently marked on the outside of the package. Do not include any manuals or accessories in the shipping package. D-Link will only replace the defective portion of the product and will not ship back any accessories.

• The customer is responsible for all in-bound shipping charges to D-Link. No Cash on Delivery ("COD") is allowed. Products sent COD will either be rejected by D-Link or become the property of D-Link. Products shall be fully insured by the customer and shipped to D-Link Systems, Inc., 17595 Mt. Herrmann, Fountain Valley, CA 92708. D-Link will not be held responsible for any packages that are lost in transit to D-Link. The repaired or replaced packages will be shipped to the customer via UPS Ground or any common carrier selected by D-Link. Return shipping charges shall be prepaid by D-Link if you use an address in the United States, otherwise we will ship the product to you freight collect. Expedited shipping is available upon request and provided shipping charges are prepaid by the customer.

D-Link may reject or return any product that is not packaged and shipped in strict compliance with the foregoing requirements, or for which an RMA number is not visible from the outside of the package. The product owner agrees to pay D-Link's reasonable handling and return shipping charges for any product that is not packaged and shipped in accordance with the foregoing requirements, or that is determined by D-Link not to be defective or non-conforming.

What Is Not Covered: The Limited Warranty provided herein by D-Link does not cover: Products that, in D-Link's judgment, have been subjected to abuse, accident, alteration, modification, tampering, negligence, misuse, faulty installation, lack of reasonable care, repair or service in any way that is not contemplated in the documentation for the product, or if the model or serial number has been altered, tampered with, defaced or removed; Initial installation, installation and removal of the product for repair, and shipping costs; Operational adjustments covered in the operating manual for the product, and normal maintenance; Damage that occurs in shipment, due to act of God, failures due to power surge, and cosmetic damage; Any hardware, software, firmware or other products or services provided by anyone other than D-Link; and Products that have been purchased from inventory clearance or liquidation sales or other sales in which D-Link, the sellers, or the liquidators expressly disclaim their warranty obligation pertaining to the product. While necessary maintenance or repairs on your Product can be performed by any company, we recommend that you use only an Authorized D-Link Service Office. Improper or incorrectly performed maintenance or repair voids this Limited Warranty.

Disclaimer of Other Warranties: EXCEPT FOR THE LIMITED WARRANTY SPECIFIED HEREIN, THE PRODUCT IS PROVIDED "AS-IS" WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. IF ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY CANNOT BE DISCLAIMED IN ANY TERRITORY WHERE A PRODUCT IS SOLD, THE DURATION OF SUCH IMPLIED WARRANTY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE DURATION OF THE APPLICABLE WARRANTY PERIOD SET FORTH ABOVE. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY COVERED UNDER THE LIMITED WARRANTY PROVIDED HEREIN, THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO THE QUALITY, SELECTION AND PERFORMANCE OF THE PRODUCT IS WITH THE PURCHASER OF THE PRODUCT. Limitation of Liability: TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, D-LINK IS NOT LIABLE UNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY FOR ANY LOSS OF USE OF THE PRODUCT, INCONVENIENCE OR DAMAGES OF ANY CHARACTER, WHETHER DIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF GOODWILL, LOSS OF REVENUE OR PROFIT, WORK STOPPAGE, COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION, FAILURE OF OTHER EQUIPMENT OR COMPUTER PROGRAMS TO WHICH D-LINK'S PRODUCT IS CONNECTED WITH, LOSS OF INFORMATION OR DATA CONTAINED IN, STORED ON, OR INTEGRATED WITH ANY PRODUCT RETURNED TO D-LINK FOR WARRANTY SERVICE) RESULTING FROM THE USE OF THE PRODUCT, RELATING TO WARRANTY SERVICE, OR ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF THIS LIMITED WARRANTY, EVEN IF D-LINK HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE SOLE REMEDY FOR A BREACH OF THE FOREGOING LIMITED WARRANTY IS REPAIR, REPLACEMENT OR REFUND OF THE DEFECTIVE OR NON-CONFORMING PRODUCT. THE MAXIMUM LIABILITY OF D-LINK UNDER THIS WARRANTY IS LIMITED TO THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE PRODUCT COVERED BY THE WARRANTY. THE FOREGOING EXPRESS WRITTEN WARRANTIES AND REMEDIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE IN LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTIES OR REMEDIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY.

Governing Law: This Limited Warranty shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Some states do not allow exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential damages, or limitations on how long an implied warranty lasts, so the foregoing limitations and exclusions may not apply. This Limited Warranty provides specific legal rights and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state.

Trademarks: D-Link is a registered trademark of D-Link Systems, Inc. Other trademarks or registered trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Copyright Statement: No part of this publication or documentation accompanying this product may be reproduced in any form or by any means or used to make any derivative such as translation, transformation, or adaptation without permission from D-Link Corporation/D-Link Systems, Inc., as stipulated by the United States Copyright Act of 1976 and any amendments thereto. Contents are subject to change without prior notice. Copyright 2005 by D-Link Corporation/D-Link Systems, Inc. All rights reserved.

CE Mark Warning: This is a Class B product. In a domestic environment, this product may cause radio interference, in which case the user may be required to take adequate measures.

FCC Statement: This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant FCC Statement: This equipment has been tested and round to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses, and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communication. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna. Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver. Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected. Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

For detailed warranty information applicable to products purchased outside the United States, please contact the corresponding local D-Link office.

Registration



Product registration is entirely voluntary and failure to complete or return this form will not diminish your warranty rights.

09/21/05